MINUTES OF COUNCIL MEETING HOUSTON, TEXAS MARCH 15, 1981

Members Present: V. Buchwald, G. Wetherill, D. Bogard, M. Lipschutz, J. Wasson, M. Drake, K. Marti, and H. Takeda

Invited Participants: D. Shaw, E. Anders, P. Eberhardt, R. Walker, B. French, and E. Gibson

President Buchwald called the meeting to order at 1910. The working agenda for the meeting is Attachment 1.

Secretary's Report: D. Bogard

The minutes of the September 2, 1980, council meeting were submitted and approved. Since last December, the Society has added 19 new members. Eight memberships have been dropped, including two deceased members (H. C. Urey and R. M. Pearl) (Attachment 2).

Post-meeting note: The President has appointed a fifth member to the Leonard Medal Committee. Members are P. Eberhardt, L. Grossman (Chairman), E. Scott, C. Chapman, and D. Stöffler.

Treasurer's Report: M. Lipschutz

The Society had a net gain during 1980 of \$1,485.80. Statement of income and expenses for 1980 are given as Attachment 3. As of March 3, 1981, there were 713 members who have paid 1980 dues, 9 life members, 17 who have not paid 1980 dues, and 503 who have paid 1981 dues. The Treasurer commended the Meteoritics Editor for setting abstracts in Meteoritics in small type, thereby reducing publication costs.

The Treasurer's report was accepted by Council.

Bern, 1981, Meeting Report: P. Eberhardt

The first announcement was mailed to 266 members. A second circular was mailed in mid-February. Abstract deadline is May 15. No major problems exist at present.

St. Louis, 1982, Meeting Report: R. Walker

The meeting will be on September 13-16 (M-Th) in a St. Louis hotel, the Clayton Plaza, which is about 15 minutes from the Washington University campus. The hotel will offer the Society a rate which is \$9 less than the standard rate at that time. The time and place of field trips have not been decided. Possible locales include a lead mine, a river float trip, and a tour of the McDonald-Douglas aircraft factory. St. Louis hosts would attempt to subsidize expenses for a few students.

<u>Meteoritics Editor's Report</u>: E. Gibson for C. Moore The report is Attachment 4.

<u>Geochimica et Cosmochimica Acta Editor's Report</u>: D. Shaw The report is Attachment 5. NASA Funding Report: B. French

The current sample research budget is \$6.6 million, of which \$3.8 million supports research on meteorites. About \$500 million NASA budget reduction is expected for FY 1982.

Considerable discussion ensued on the role of the annual Lunar and Planetary Science Conference (LPSC) and the Lunar and Planetary Institute (LPI) in meteorite research.

Motion No. 1: (made by K. Marti, seconded by J. Wasson)

That a committee be appointed to make recommendations to the Council regarding frequency of meetings and specifically the role of the Lunar and Planetary Science Conference.

The motion passed unanimously.

Motion No. 2: (made by J. Wasson)

That George Wetherill write NASA and the Executive Branch of the United States Government to advocate support for research on nonterrestrial samples.

After a short discussion, the President appointed G. Wetherill to carry out the motion.

Motion No. 3: (made by M. Drake)

That the Society should invite representatives of the European Space Agency to make a presentation to the Council at the 1981 meeting in Bern. The President appointed himself to take action on the motion.

Publications Committee Report: E. Anders

E. Anders gave a verbal report. In response to a request by Past President Wasson, the Committee had reviewed the cost of publishing *Meteoritics* (a report by A. A. Levinson was distributed—attachment), and had voted on the term of office of the Editor of *Meteoritics*. The Committee recommended a finite term of 3 years, running to 12/83, and a deadline for new nominations or renominations 18 months before the end of the term.

A discussion ensued on the desired term of office of the Editor of Meteoritics.

Motion No. 4: (made by J. Wasson, seconded by M. Drake)

That the term of Editor of Meteoritics be for four years. The motion passed, 5 for, 3 against.

Motion No. 5: (made by M. Drake, seconded by J. Wasson)

That henceforth the term of office of the Editor of Meteoritics should end with December 1983; and that 18 months prior to the expiration of the term of office of the Editor of Meteoritics, the Council should identify the Editor for the following term.

The motion passed unanimously.

President Buchwald appointed J. Wasson to draft an amendment to the constitution of The Meteoritical Society on the term of office of the Editor of *Meteoritics*.

E. Anders discussed his recent negotiations with Pergamon Press. A proposed new contract calls for a 37% overhead rate on production costs, with the printing to be done by a U.S. press. Anders proposed to include an option in the new contract to purchase the title to Geochimica et Cosmochimica Acta.

Motion No. 6: (made by J. Wasson, seconded by M. Lipschutz)

That Council instruct the Publications Committee to explore ways of strengthening the Society's bargaining position when the new 1982-1991 contract comes up for renewal. Specifically, the Committee shall seek an arrangement that gives the Society an option to buy Geochimica et Cosmochimica Acta for a nominal sum any time after expiration of the new contract. The bulk of the purchase price may be prepaid by page charges, by an increase in Pergamon's profit, or by a combination of the two.

The motion passed unanimously.

Motion No. 7: (made by J. Wasson, seconded by M. Drake)

That the Council approve the Publications Committee's efforts to reduce expenses to Society members for Supplements to Geochimica et Cosmochimica Acta.

The motion passed unanimously.

Motion No. 8: (made by J. Wasson, seconded by K. Marti)

That Section 5d be added to the Publications Committee's Bylaws as follows: To advise the Society on any matter concerning publications. The motion passed.

E. Anders noted that the Publications Committee, under Bylaw 5a, would henceforth take over the Council's function of approving obituaries in the Society's journals.

New Business:

J. Wasson introduced the topic of whether the Society should consider reimbursement to the hosts of the 1979 Society meeting for costs in the amount of 994 DM which were not covered. Some discussion followed.

Motion No. 9: (made by M. Drake, seconded by J. Wasson)

That Till Kirsten be invited to submit a report on cost overruns from the 1979 meeting to the Council for their consideration as to reimbursement of a significant fraction of expenses.

The motion passed, 7 for, 1 against.

The Council meeting was adjourned at 2210.